
SPECIAL WORK SESSION MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

September 17, 2012 
 
The City Council met at the above place and date.  Meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m.  Mayor John 
Cook present and presiding and the following Council Members answered roll call:  Ann Morgan Lilly, Susie 
Byrd, Michiel Noe, and Eddie Holguin, Jr.  Late arrival:  Emma Acosta at 10:11 a.m. and Carl Robinson at 
10:23 a.m. Excused:  Steve Ortega and Cortney Niland. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
1. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES & CODE ENFORCEMENT: 

 
Discussion and action on direction to proceed with plastic bag ban, plastic bag fee or enhanced plastic 
bag recycling program.  
[Environmental Services, Ellen Smyth, (915) 621-6719] 

  
2. MAYOR & COUNCIL: 

 
Discussion and action on the City policy for the location and placement of taxi cab 
stands.[Representative Susie Byrd, District 2, (915) 541-4416] 
 

3. Adjournment. 
 
Minutes 
 
ITEM 1. 
 
Mr. Marty Howell, Sustainability Program Manager, gave a brief summary on the plastic bag program and 
talked about bans on plastic bags throughout other Texas cities. 
 

- Single use bag fee (decrease in bag use for the public) 
- Money saved on clean-ups 
- Perceived as a tax 
- Creates an administrative burden 
- Low Income concerns 
- Enhanced recycling and education efforts are typical the first steps in Cities. 

 
He asked about the direction that City Council wishes to pursue. 
 
Representative Noe asked “What are we, the City, trying to achieve?” 
 
Mr. Howell stated that the main effort is to clean-up the community. 

  CITY COUNCIL 
 JOHN F. COOK ANN MORGAN LILLY, DISTRICT 1 
 MAYOR SUSANNAH M. BYRD, DISTRICT 2 
  EMMA ACOSTA, DISTRICT 3 
  CARL ROBINSON, DISTRICT 4 
  MICHIEL NOE, DISTRICT 5 
 JOYCE WILSON EDDIE HOLGUIN JR., DISTRICT 6 
 CITY MANAGER STEVE ORTEGA, DISTRICT 7 
  CORTNEY NILAND, DISTRICT 8 



  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – SEPTEMBER 17,  2012    2 
 

 
Representative Noe stated that the direction City Council takes must have a positive impact; banning the 
bags will have an adverse effect.  There are no positive affects on banning plastic bags. 
 
Ms. Joyce Wilson, City Manager stated that there was confusion on the last Council direction that is the 
reason for this item to be on the agenda. 
 
Representative Acosta asked if anyone has researched any grants that are available.  What is the amount 
of bags in the community?  Are we talking of eliminating everything from every store or just grocery stores?  
Public relations or research test areas? 
 
Mr. Howell stated that they are constantly looking for grants.  He does not have the number of bags being 
used. 
 
Representative Byrd suggested a rewards program. 
 
Mr. Howell suggested a Recycle Bank where individuals got points. 
 
Representative Byrd asked if there were other options from retailers that would be available to the 
consumer. 
 
Representative Holguin stated that if the City was unsure of the direction to go – why not ask. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that there is no misdirection, we just need clarification. 
 
Representative Robinson encourages individuals to recycle. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Lilly stated that there is a need to reduce the cost of canvas bags. 
 
MOTION: 
 
Motion made by Representative Byrd, seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore Lilly not to pursue a ban or fee but 
to pursue recycling or a bank program and come back in 6 months before City Council.  Collect bags and 
put a value on the bags like cans. 
 
AYES: Representatives Lilly, Byrd, Acosta, Robinson, Noe, and Holguin 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT:  Representatives Ortega and Niland 
 
ITEM 2. 
 
Representative Byrd stated that she wanted the cab stand placed in closer proximity to areas that provide 
drinking to the public so as to lessen the DWI incidents within the City. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Lilly stated that there are two taxi stands in the Cincinnati area already. 
 
Representative Byrd stated that bar owners should be pro-active with Police and taxi services to provide 
their services.  Every option should be explored. 
 
Ms. Sylvia Firth, City Attorney, stated that the methods of action to request stands are in Ordinance. 
   



  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – SEPTEMBER 17,  2012    3 
 

- Request by the public 
- Taxicab zone 
- Traffic Engineers. 

 
Mr. Ted Marquez, Deputy Director, Department of Transportation, stated that there is a fee assessed with 
taxi stands.  All companies my pay a fee to use the zones. 
 
Representative Byrd said that we need easy options for the consumers. 
 
Representative Acosta asked if we could contract with the taxi companies. 
 
Assistant Chief Michelle Gardener stated that companies are interested in an arrangement between all 
parties. 
 
Mr. Marquez said that a fee must be established. 
 
Mr. David Almonte, Deputy City Manager, commented. 
 
Representative Robinson asked who is responsible, the bar? owner? individual?  We must engage all 
parties involved. 
 
Representative Noe stated that Council has a responsibility to invite Taxi companies to set up zones. 
 
Mr. Marquez suggested exempting the cruising ordinance and make decisions with input from the various 
industries.  
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Lilly asked if there is a phone number we could provide to all military individuals so 
they could call for a ride. 
 
MOTION 
 
Motion made by Representative Byrd; seconded by Representative Acosta to identify the areas more 
problematic and work with Taxi companies and bar owners to find a remedy to the situation. 
 
AYES: Representatives Lilly, Byrd, Acosta, Robinson, Noe, and Holguin 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT:  Representatives Ortega and Niland 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Motion made by Representative Robinson, seconded by Representative Byrd, and unanimously carried to 
adjourn this meeting at 10:51 a. m. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Richarda Duffy Momsen, City Clerk 


